
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 
DX: 26823 - BOSTON 
 

 

 

18 September 2017 
 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE REGULATORY & APPEALS COMMITTEE 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Regulatory & Appeals Committee on 
Tuesday, 26th September, 2017 at 2.00 pm 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
 
Chairman: Councillor Colin Brotherton 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Paul Gleeson 
Councillors: Richard Austin, David Brown, Maureen Dennis, James Edwards, 

Ben Evans, Stephen Raven, Jonathan Noble, Judith Skinner, 
Yvonne Stevens and Stephen Woodliffe 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
PART I – PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 13th June 2017. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting. 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   SAFEGUARDING TRAINING (Pages 5 - 18) 
 

 (A report by Fiona White, Principal Licensing and Land Charges Officer) 
 

2   EQUALITY ACT 2010 - WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE HACKNEY CARRIAGES 
AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES (Pages 19 - 36) 
 

 (A report by Fiona White, Principal Licensing and Land Charges Officer) 
 

 
 

THIS MEETING WILL BE RECORDED (SOUND ONLY) 
 
 
Notes: 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Telephone: 01205 
314227 e-mail: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer as soon as possible. 
 
Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 

Emergency Procedures 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 

via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 
located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 



REGULATORY AND APPEALS COMMITTEE 
 

13 June 2017 

Present: Councillor Colin Brotherton (Chairman), Councillor Paul Gleeson (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Richard Austin, Maureen Dennis, James Edwards, 
Jonathan Noble, Stephen Raven, Yvonne Stevens and Stephen Woodliffe 
 
In attendance -  
 
Officers –  
Principal Licensing and Land Charges Officer and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
9   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 20th September 2016 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
10   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors David Brown and Judith Skinner. 
 
11   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Members had no interests to declare. 
 
12   EQUALITY ACT 2010 - WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE HACKNEY 

CARRIAGES AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 
 

The Principal Licensing and Land Charges Officer presented a report regarding 
provisions of the Equality Act 2010 in respect of wheelchair accessible hackney 
carriages and private hire vehicles, which commenced on 6 April 2017.   
 
The provisions allowed a licensing authority to create a list of “designated vehicles” 
capable of carrying passengers in wheelchairs and then require drivers of those vehicles 
to provide mobility assistance.  It was an offence for a licensed driver of a designated 
vehicle, unless granted a medical exemption, to fail to comply with the duty to provide 
mobility assistance. 
 
By creating a list of designated vehicles, the Council would be able to publish and make 
clear to the public, vehicle operators and drivers, the licensed vehicles capable of 
carrying a passenger in a wheelchair and the assistance the drivers of those vehicles 
would be required to provide.  Drivers would not be allowed to make an additional 
charge for the assistance they provided.  There was a right of appeal against the 
decision to include a vehicle on the list.   
 
A copy of the Council’s current policy for wheelchair accessible vehicles was attached at 
Appendix B.  A draft revised policy was attached at Appendix C.  The Committee was 
asked to consider the draft, make any appropriate amendments, and resolve that the 
draft revised specification be issued to the licensed trade and other interested parties for 
consultation. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Licensing-Regulatory and Appeals Committee 
13 June 2017 
 

There were currently 239 vehicles licensed by the Council and 47 of these 
(approximately 20%) were wheelchair accessible.  The Council’s current policy specified 
the requirements and dimensions for wheelchair accessible vehicles, stating that 
vehicles that could carry five or more passengers could be wheelchair accessible.  
However, the current vehicle specification fell short of that required for carrying a 
“reference wheelchair”.  Therefore, all vehicles would need to be inspected to determine 
which ones met the standard in order to be included on the list and the policy needed to 
be amended to reflect the actual size of a reference wheelchair.   
 
Also, the draft policy referred to provision of ramps, which had to conform to British 
Standard and lifting regulations; this was already contained in legislation, but reference 
to this in the policy would raise awareness.   
 
There had been problems in other areas with transit vans being used, which were M2 
type vehicles; therefore, the draft policy stated “only M1 type”.  Vehicles that had 
undergone modifications or conversions since original manufacture would now be 
required to be tested by the Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency (DVSA) rather than a 
local garage, which would be safer. 
 
There were no current exemptions in the borough for hackney carriage and private hire 
vehicle drivers in relation to assistance dogs. 
 
During Members’ debate, the report and the proposal were commended.  Various 
questions were raised and, in summary, the Principal Licensing and Land Charges 
Officer responded as follows. 
 
Feedback received did not indicate that there was a lack of wheelchair accessible 
vehicles.  Larger vehicles were already available owing to the demand for airport runs 
and vehicles that could carry five or more people and, also, some companies had 
purchased them for school run contracts.  However, a decision to increase the number 
would require a blanket policy for all vehicles to be wheelchair accessible, which would 
be a significant expense for those not benefiting from grandfather rights and fares would 
rise as a consequence.   
 
It was reasonable to believe that all existing wheelchair accessible vehicles would meet 
the reference wheelchair size, because there was only a few millimetres difference to 
the present policy.  However grandfather rights would allow existing vehicles to be used 
until the end of their useful life, but if not capable of carrying a reference wheelchair 
accessible vehicle they would not be included on the list.   
 
Some vehicles had lifts that could be used for heavy wheelchair users, but they were 
expensive and had to be tested twice a year.  Vehicle owners would have to pay for their 
own ramps and the cost of DSVA tests.   
 
There was no disability awareness training at the moment; if required, it would be at the 
expense of the driver or taxi company.  The requirement was to demonstrate how a 
wheelchair was loaded and unloaded and how the wheelchair user was strapped in.  An 
application would not be allowed until the authority was satisfied by the demonstration.  
It was not thought likely that larger companies with mixed vehicle fleets would have 
drivers that qualified for exemption from providing assistance. 
 

Page 2



Licensing-Regulatory and Appeals Committee 
13 June 2017 

 

The question as to whether Imperial measurements be retained in the policy was a 
decision for the Committee.  The term “reference wheelchair” had been lifted directly 
from the regulations.   
 
The number of licensed vehicles in the borough was high, though one operator had 
several vehicles purely for school contracts.  There used to be a cap on the number, but 
it was removed and the matter had been discussed extensively.  The Committee could 
consider reintroducing a cap, but they were not recommended by the Department of 
Transport.  A cap would be subject to challenge in terms of monopolies, would 
encourage the sale of old vehicles for inflated amounts and expensive surveys would 
have to be carried out to prove there was no unmet demand.   
 

RESOLVED That: 
 

1. Under the Equality Act 2010, the introduction of a list of designated wheelchair 
accessible vehicles licensed by the Council be approved.   

 
2. The draft amendments to the specification for wheelchair accessible vehicles be 

issued to the licensed trade and other interested parties for consultation. 
 

3. The procedure outlined at paragraph 3.5 of the report for applying for a driver 
exemption be adopted and the Council’s policy be amended to reflect this. 
 

4. The next steps outlined at paragraph 4.1 of the report be agreed and the task of 
undertaking these steps be delegated to the Principal Licensing & Land Charges 
Officer. 
 

 
13   DELEGATED DECISION LIST 

 
The Committee received the list of decisions made by the Principal Licensing and Land 
Charges Officer under delegated powers since the Committee’s last meeting on 20th 
September 2016 relating to matters within the remit of the Regulatory and Appeals 
Committee. 
 
The Principal Licensing and Land Charges Officer offered to give more detail regarding 
those suspended or revoked, but it would necessitate moving into private session, as 
the information was confidential.   
 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

IT WAS RESOLVED that under Section 100 (A) (iv) of the Local Government Act 
1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)(Variation) 
Order 2006, the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 1 of Schedule 12A of the Order. 

 
The Principal Licensing and Land Charges Officer gave an overview of decisions taken 
by the Regulatory and Appeals Sub-Committee since August 2016 with respect to 
hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licences.  One decision had been to take no 

Page 3



Licensing-Regulatory and Appeals Committee 
13 June 2017 
 

further action, one licence had been suspended pending safeguarding training and 
several others had been revoked for various reasons.  A press release was to be issued 
about these decisions with brief grounds of the reasons in order to send out a message 
to the drivers and to assure the public.   
 
 

The Meeting ended at 2.52 pm 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: REGULATORY & APPEALS COMMITTEE 

DATE: 26 SEPTEMBER 2017 

SUBJECT: SAFEGUARDING TRAINING 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR FINANCE 

REPORT AUTHOR: PRINCIPAL LICENSING & LAND CHARGES 
OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
On the 28 June 2016 the committee adopted a revised Application Policy and 
Relevance of Convictions Guidelines in relation to Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicle Drivers and Private Hire Operators. 
 
The revised policy included a requirement that applicants complete the 
Licensing Authority’s Safeguarding Awareness Training (new applicants and 
existing applicants prior to their next renewal). 
 
Initially existing drivers were being required to undertake the training at the 
time their licence renewal was due.   
 
However, in consultation with the Solicitor to the Council, following 2 cases of 
child safeguarding issues in Boston which lead to the revocation of the 
drivers’ licences,  it was considered necessary to meet the councils 
safeguarding obligations, that the training to be undertaken without further 
delay. 
 
Drivers were written to advising of the requirement to undertake the training 
by 31 August 2017. Drivers were also advised that a recommendation would 
be made to Regulatory & Appeals Committee that the licences of drivers who 
had failed to complete the training be suspended until this requirement was 
met. 
 
At the time this report was published, 33 licensed drivers had failed to submit 
certificates to evidence that the training had been satisfactorily completed. 
 
It is recommended that the committee supports the intention of officers to use 
delegated authority to suspend the licences of those drivers who have not 
submitted training certificates.   
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. The committee supports the intention that the licences of those drivers 
who have not submitted certificates to evidence the mandatory 
safeguarding training has been completed be suspended using 
authority delegated to officers in Part 3(a) of the Council’s Constitution. 
 

 

 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To ensure that all drivers who hold valid licences have undergone the 
necessary safeguarding training as detailed in the Application Policy.  This is 
to support the council’s obligation to safeguard children and vulnerable adults. 
 
 

 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

1. The committee resolves that the licences of drivers who have not 
completed the safeguarding training shall not be suspended.  Officers 
do not recommend this alternative as it would not support the council’s 
obligation to safeguard children and vulnerable adults 
 

2. The committee resolves that the drivers who have failed to undertake 
the safeguarding training are referred to a Regulatory & Appeals Sub-
Committee for their case to be considered.  As certificates are being 
received daily and as referring all cases to a sub-committee would 
delay the process of suspending licences, officers do not recommend 
this alternative.  

 
 

 
REPORT 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The committee will be aware that despite the statutory requirements 

around safeguarding there have been failings of various bodies, 
including the taxi licensing authority in Rotherham, with respect to child 
and vulnerable adult safeguarding.  Nationally this has lead to 
Licensing Authorities recognising a need to review their licensing 
policies and procedures to ensure they are fit for purpose.  In 
Lincolnshire, licensing authorities worked in partnership with other 
agencies to undertake necessary reviews and implement any 
appropriate additional safeguards identified.  One of the safeguarding 
needs identified was for all hackney carriage and private hire vehicle 

Page 6



drivers to undertake safeguarding training.  An online training package 
was developed by the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board 
(LSCB) and it was agreed that this training would be rolled out to all 
licensed drivers across the county. 

 
1.2 On 28 June 2016 the committee adopted a revised Application Policy 

and Relevance of Convictions Guidelines in relation to Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Drivers and Private Hire Operators. 
This included a requirement for all drivers to undertake the 
safeguarding training to be provided by the LSCB, once available.  

 
1.3 Initially existing drivers were being required to undertake the training at 

the time of their licence renewal.  As driver renewals are every 3 years, 
it would take this period of time before all drivers had undertaken the 
requisite safeguarding training.  However, following 2 child 
safeguarding cases in Boston, one in April 2017 and one in May 2017, 
both involving licensed drivers, whose licences were subsequently 
revoked, the requirement for drivers to complete safeguarding training 
at the time of their next licence renewal was reconsidered.  In 
consultation with the Solicitor to the Council, it was agreed it was 
necessary, to meet the council’s safeguarding obligations, that the 
training be undertaken by all drivers without further delay. 

 
1.4 In June 2017 all licensed drivers who had not previously completed the 

training were written to and advised of the requirement to complete the 
mandatory training and submit the required certificates by 31 August 
2017.  A copy of that letter is attached at Appendix A.  A letter was also 
sent to all operators advising them of the training requirement. 

 
1.5 Shortly before the 31 August 2017 deadline, there were approximately 

100 drivers who had not submitted their certificates to evidence that the 
training had been completed.  A reminder letter was sent to these 
drivers.  This letter also advised drivers that a recommendation would 
be made to the Regulatory & Appeals Committee that the licences of 
drivers who had failed to complete the mandatory training be 
suspended until the requirement was met. A copy of this letter is 
attached at Appendix B.  

 
1.6 On 7 September 2017 there was still nearly 50 drivers who had failed 

complete the training and submit their certificates.  A final warning 
letter was sent to these drivers.  A copy of that letter is attached at 
Appendix C. 

 
1.7 At the time this report was published, 33 licensed drivers had failed to 

submit certificates to evidence that the training had been satisfactorily 
completed. 

 
 
 
 

Page 7



2.  THE NEXT STEPS 
 
2.1 Under the provisions of Section 61(1) of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 a council may suspend or revoke 
the licence of a driver of a hackney carriage and/or private hire vehicle 
on any of the following grounds: 

 
a) That he/she has since the grant of the licence- 

 
i. Been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, 

indecency or violence; 
ii. Been convicted of an offence under or has failed to 

comply with the provisions of taxi licensing legislation 
 

b) Any other reasonable cause. 
 

2.2 In Part 3a of the Constitution there is an officer delegation to the 
Solicitor to the Council to suspend Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Vehicle Driver Licences.  The Solicitor to the Council has further 
delegated this authority to the Principal Licensing & Land Charges 
Officer.   

 
2.3 Whilst drivers are regularly referred to the Regulatory & Appeals Sub-

Committee for consideration of their case, there are cases where it 
would be more appropriate to deal with the matter using authority 
delegated to officers.  It is suggested that this scenario is a case where 
it would be more appropriate for consideration of drivers’ licences to be 
dealt with under delegated authority.  This is would be appropriate for 
the following reasons: 

 

 The number of cases to be considered; 

 All cases are similar; 

 Drivers have been given the opportunity to put forward any 
grounds to be considered prior to their licence being suspended; 

 Drivers have been made aware that if they have not completed 
the training then suspension of their licence will be considered. 

 It is likely that certificates will continue to be received thus the 
drivers whose licences would be subject to suspension is 
changing daily; 

 It is necessary that action taken to suspend licences is 
implemented without delay and suspension notices are sent out 
simultaneously so that one driver is not 
advantaged/disadvantaged over another; and 

 These suspensions would not take effect until after the 21 day 
appeal period or if appealed until after the appeal is disposed of.  
Providing the training was undertaken during the appeal period, 
no driver would be disadvantaged by a licence suspension. 

 
2.4 The committee is requested to consider this report and resolve to 

agree the following recommendation. 

Page 8



 
The committee supports the intention that the licences of those drivers 
who have not submitted certificates to evidence that the mandatory 
safeguarding training has been completed be suspended using 
authority delegated to officers in Part 3(a) of the Council’s Constitution. 
 

2.5 Drivers’ licences would be re-instated upon receipt of their certificates. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
It is a policy requirement for drivers to undertake safeguarding training.  In 
light of safeguarding issues arising in Boston, the initial requirement that the 
training be undertaken at the time of licence renewal has been reviewed.  The 
revised view, to meet the council’s safeguarding obligation, is it is necessary 
for all drivers to undertake the safeguarding training without further delay. 
 
A number of drivers have failed to carry out the training and therefore officers 
are of the view it would it appropriate that the licences of these drivers be 
suspended, on the any other reasonable cause grounds.  The any other 
reasonable cause grounds being that the drivers have failed, having been 
given reasonable notice, to carry out the training required to meet the councils 
safeguarding responsibilities. 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The cost for stationery and postage for issuing suspension notices is 
estimated at a maximum of £30. This will be met from existing budgets. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Boston Borough Council has a legal duty to ensure that all of its ‘functions are 
discharged having regard to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
Children’ and that ‘any services provided by another person pursuant to 
arrangements made by the person or body in the discharge of their functions 
are provided having regard to that need’ (Children Act 2004, S 11(2)). 
 
To meet the requirements of the Children Act 2004, outlined above, the 
council must ensure that all licensed drivers have completed the mandatory 
safeguarding training required by its policy.  
 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Human Rights – The Licensing Authority must ensure that its decisions can 
withstand scrutiny by reference to the principle of proportionality, in other 
words the end must justify the means. 

Page 9



 
Equality and Diversity –  An Equality Assessment of the Application Policy 
and Relevance of Convictions Guidelines in relation to Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicle Drivers and Private Hire Operators was undertaken and 
considered by the Equality Board on 26 May 2016.   
 
Risk - There is a risk of civil action against the council if it is found not to have 
exercised due diligence in the setting of its hackney carriage and private hire 
policy. 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
CMT 
Portfolio Holder for Licensing 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Letter to Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Vehicle Drivers – June 2017 
 

APPENDIX B Letter to Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Vehicle Drivers – 23 August 2017 
 

APPENIX C Letter to Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Vehicle Drivers – 7 September 2017 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Application Policy, Relevance of 
Convictions Guidelines in 
relation to Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicle Drivers 
and Private Hire Operators. 

Licensing Office 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
 Reports on this item were considered by Regulatory & Appeals Committee on 
15 March and 28 June 2016.  

 

Page 10



 Main Switchboard: (01205) 314200 
Web-site: www.boston.gov.uk 

Like us on facebook: 
Boston Borough Council 

Follow us on twitter: 
@bostonboro 
 

  

 

 

 
   

June 2017 
 
 
TO: PRIVATE HIRE/HACKNEY  
 CARRIAGE DRIVERS 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Tel:      
E-mail:    
Our Ref:   
Your Ref: 

 
 
01205 314242 
licensing@boston.gov.uk  
 

Dear Driver 
 

Online Safeguarding Training 
 
In June 2016 this council resolved that all hackney carriage and private hire vehicle 
drivers would be required to undertake online safeguarding training prior to their 
licence next being renewed.  To date we have required drivers to submit the training 
certificates as part of the licence renewal process. 
 
However, having reconsidered our obligation to do all we can to ensure the 
safeguarding of children and vulnerable adults, we have decided that it would be 
appropriate to ensure that all drivers have undergone the necessary awareness 
training sooner rather than later. 
 
Our records indicate that you have not yet completed the online training. This is due 
to your licence not being due for renewal since the training was rolled out. 
 
I therefore advise you that you must complete the training (which is free of charge) 
and submit the required certificates to the licensing team at the council offices by no 
later than 31 August 2017.  Instructions on how to access the training and print off 
the certificates is attached.   
 
Drivers who fail to complete the training will be referred to a sub-committee of this 
council’s Regulatory & Appeals Committee for that committee to consider whether, 
having failed to complete this mandatory requirement, they continue to be a suitable 
person to continue to be licensed. 
 
If you do not have access to a computer, access is available at both the council 
offices and Lincolnshire County Council’s Library, County Hall, Boston.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 8QR 
 

APPENDIX A 

Page 11



 Main Switchboard: (01205) 314200 
Web-site: www.boston.gov.uk 

Like us on facebook: 
Boston Borough Council 

Follow us on twitter: 
@bostonboro 
 

  

 
 
I also attach a copy of our Safeguarding Code of Conduct which you may have 
previously received.  If you have not already received this and signed a declaration 
to indicate you have read it and understand that it forms part of our policy, then you 
are requested to do so and submit the declaration with your Safeguarding Training 
Certificates. 
 
If you require any further information with respect to this matter, please do not 
hesitate to contact Shaun Sharp by email at licensing@boston.gov.uk or telephone 
01205 314214. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Fiona White 
Principal Licensing & Land Charges Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12

mailto:licensing@boston.gov.uk


 Main Switchboard: (01205) 314200 
Web-site: www.boston.gov.uk 

Like us on facebook: 
Boston Borough Council 

Follow us on twitter: 
@bostonboro 
 

  

 

 

 
   

23 August 2017 
 
 
TO: PRIVATE HIRE/HACKNEY  
 CARRIAGE DRIVERS 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Tel:      
E-mail:    
Our Ref:   
Your Ref: 

 
 
01205 314214 
licensing@boston.gov.uk  
 

Dear Driver 
 

Online Safeguarding Training 
 
I wrote to you in June to advise you of the requirement to complete online 
safeguarding training by no later than 31 August 2017 and submit the required 
certificates to the licensing team at the above address.  A copy of that letter is 
attached. 
 
Our records indicate that you have not yet submitted the required certificates to 
evidence that you have completed the training. 
 
You are reminded that you must complete the training, which is free of charge, by 
the required date. 
 
A recommendation will be made to the council’s Regulatory & Appeals Committee 
that the licences of drivers who have failed to complete the mandatory training be 
suspended until this requirement is met.  It will be for the committee to decide 
whether or not to implement this sanction. 
 
I am aware that in some cases drivers have not followed the attached guidance 
correctly and this has resulted in them not completing the correct courses on their 
first attempt. To clarify this, I advise you that the courses to be completed are: 
 

 Introduction to Safeguarding Everyone in Lincolnshire – Protecting Children, 
Young People and Adults at Risk: 

 
AND 
 

 Taxi Drivers Child Sexual Exploitation e-learning course. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 8QR 
 

APPENDIX B 

Page 13



 Main Switchboard: (01205) 314200 
Web-site: www.boston.gov.uk 

Like us on facebook: 
Boston Borough Council 

Follow us on twitter: 
@bostonboro 
 

  

If you do not have access to a computer, access is available at Lincolnshire County 
Council’s Library, County Hall, Boston.   
 
I also attach a copy of our Safeguarding Code of Conduct which you may have 
previously received.  If you have not already received this and signed a declaration 
to indicate you have read it and understand that it forms part of our policy, then you 
are requested to do so and submit the declaration with your Safeguarding Training 
Certificates. 
 
If you require any further information with respect to this matter, please do not 
hesitate to contact Shaun Sharp by email at licensing@boston.gov.uk or telephone 
01205 314214. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Fiona White 
Principal Licensing & Land Charges Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14

mailto:licensing@boston.gov.uk


 Main Switchboard: (01205) 314200 
Web-site: www.boston.gov.uk 

Like us on facebook: 
Boston Borough Council 

Follow us on twitter: 
@bostonboro 
 

  

 

 

 
   

7 September 2017 
 
PRIVATE HIRE/HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE DRIVERS 
 
 
 

 
 
Tel:      
E-mail:    
Our Ref:   
Your Ref: 

 
 
01205 314214 
licensing@boston.gov.uk  
 

Dear Driver 
 

Online Safeguarding Training 
 
Further to my previous letters, I advise you that I have not received at least one of 
the two certificates you were required to submit to the council to evidence that you 
have completed the mandatory safeguarding training. 
 
The deadline for this training was 31 August 2017. 
 
A report, recommending the suspension of the licence of any driver who has failed to 
complete the training and submit their certificates will be considered by this council’s 
Regulatory & Appeals Committee on 26 September 2017. 
 
If the committee agree with the recommendation to suspend the licences of drivers 
who have failed to complete the training, and if you have not submitted your 
certificate(s) by 26 September, a suspension notice will be issued. 
 
If you wish to put a case forward as to why your licence should not be suspended, 
then please do so, in writing, by the committee date.  Alternatively, if you would 
prefer to put your case verbally, please contact me before 26 September 2017 to 
make an appointment to discuss your case. 
 
If you do not have access to a computer, access is available at Lincolnshire County 
Council’s Library, County Hall, Boston.  I understand that the staff at the library are 
helpful and can assist you if you are not an experienced computer user. 
 
If you have completed the training and submitted your certificates within the past few 
days, this letter may have been sent to you before we received the certificates.  If 
this is the case, please ignore this letter and I apologise for any inconvenience 
caused. 
 
If you have sent us your certificate(s) more than a few days ago and therefore 
believe we are already in possession of them, I urge you to contact us as a matter of 
urgency to enable this matter to be resolved. 
 
 
 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 8QR 
 

APPENDIX C 

Page 15



 Main Switchboard: (01205) 314200 
Web-site: www.boston.gov.uk 

Like us on facebook: 
Boston Borough Council 

Follow us on twitter: 
@bostonboro 
 

  

 
 
 
If you require any further information with respect to this matter, please do not 
hesitate to contact Shaun Sharp by email at licensing@boston.gov.uk or telephone 
01205 314214.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Fiona White 
Principal Licensing & Land Charges Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16

mailto:licensing@boston.gov.uk


 
FINANCE PROFORMA 

 
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:  Rachel Hilton  

 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:  SAFEGUARDING TRAINING  
REPORT DATE:  26TH SEPTEMBER 2017  
 
OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 
Revenue      
      
      
 30     

Total Revenue 
Cost 

30     

 
Funding required: To be 

covered 
from 
existing 
budgets. 
 

 Considered by: 
Regulatory and 
Appeals committee 

Date: 
26.09.17 

Total capital cost 
 

£0  Enter committee here  
 

Regulator
y and 
Appeals 
committee 

Revenue cost 
 

£  Enter Council or 
Cabinet here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 
 
There will be no financial implications and the minimal costs will be met from existing 
budgets.  
 
Risk 
 
Procurement 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 
 
This FP is valid for 3 months 
from FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 
advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report 
it may invalidate this document, it must 
be reviewed by Finance. 

   

 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: REGULATORY & APPEALS COMMITTEE 

DATE: 26 SEPTEMBER 2017 

SUBJECT: EQUALITY ACT 2010 – WHEELCHAIR 
ACCESSIBLE HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND 
PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR FINANCE 

REPORT AUTHOR: PRINCIPAL LICENSING & LAND CHARGES 
OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Provisions of the Equality Act 2010, in respect of wheelchair accessible 
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles, commenced on 6 April 2017.  
The provisions allow a licensing authority to create a list of “designated 
vehicles” which are capable of carrying passengers in wheelchairs (section 
167) and then require drivers of those vehicles to provide mobility assistance 
(section 165). 
 
On 13 June 2017 the committee resolved to introduce a list of wheelchair 
accessible vehicles; approved draft amendments to the specification for 
wheelchair accessible vehicles; and adopted a procedure for applying driver 
exemptions from carrying a passenger in a wheelchair.  
 
The committee also delegated a number of tasks to the Principal Licensing 
Officer, including: 
 

 Notifying proprietors of identified vehicles and advising them that 
the authority proposes to include their vehicle on the authority’s list 
of designated vehicles.   

 Consulting vehicle proprietors and other relevant parties on the 
amendments to the specification for wheelchair accessible vehicles. 

 
These tasks were undertaken. 
 
The committee is now requested to adopt the revised wheelchair accessible 
specification, with suggested amendments, and note that the outstanding 
tasks, delegated to the Principal Licensing & Land Charges Officer will be 
undertaken. 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 2



 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 

1. The committee adopts the revised wheelchair accessible vehicle 
specification attached at Appendix B, to include the recommended 
amendment outlined at paragraph 2.3 of this report. 

 
2. The committee notes that the Principal Licensing & Land Charges 

Officer will carry out the outstanding previously delegated tasks listed 
at paragraph 3.1 of this report.  
 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The revised specification introduces additional requirements for wheelchair 
accessible vehicles that will improve the safety and comfort for passengers 
who are transported in a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle whilst 
seated in their wheelchair. 
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

1. To resolve not to adopt the revised wheelchair accessible vehicle 
specification.  Officers do not recommend this alternative resolution. 

 
 

 

 
REPORT 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 On 13 June the committee considered a report regarding the 

implementation of sections 165 and 167 of the Equality Act 2010.  The 
committee also considered a draft revised wheelchair accessible 
vehicle specification and a number of tasks to be delegated to the 
Principal Licensing & Land Charges Officer.  A copy of the report is 
attached at Appendix A. 

 
1.2 The committee resolved that: 
 

 Under the Equality Act 2010, the introduction of a list of 
designated wheelchair accessible vehicles licensed by the 
Council be approved.   

 

 The draft amendments to the specification for wheelchair 
accessible vehicles be issued to the licensed trade and other 
interested parties for consultation. 

Page 20



 

 The procedure outlined at paragraph 3.5 of the report, attached 
at Appendix A, for applying for a driver exemption be adopted 
and the Council’s policy be amended to reflect this.  

 

 The next steps outlined at paragraph 4.1 of the report, attached 
at Appendix A, be agreed and the task of undertaking these 
steps be delegated to the Principal Licensing & Land Charges 
Officer.  

 
2. CONSULTATION 
 
2.1 All Hackney Carriage Proprietors and Private Hire Operators were 

consulted on the draft revised Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle Policy.  A 
copy of the draft is attached at Appendix B. 

 
2.2 No responses were received in respect of this consultation from the 

hackney carriage and private hire trade. 
 
2.3 A representative from Boston Disability Forum responded stating 
 

“Can a lap strap seat belt, which may have been fitted onto a w/chair 
by the manufacturer, be used without out any additional over shoulder 
vehicle seat belting in the aforementioned vehicles? (I have in another 
district in the past travelled in a taxi with only a lap strap. The driver on 
that occasion didn’t have a clue on w/chair transportation).” 
 
The licensing section is not aware of any licensed wheelchair 
accessible vehicle in the borough that secures passengers with a lap 
belt only.  However, for the purposes of passenger safety it is 
RECOMMENDED that the requirement in the vehicle specification for 
securing an occupant in a wheelchair is amended as follows: 
 

  “A 3 point seat belt system for securing a passenger using a wheel 
chair and a system for effective anchoring of wheelchairs shall be 
provided within the vehicle in all spaces designated as wheelchair 
space.  Wheelchair anchorage systems and devices must conform to 
European Directive 76/115 EEC (as amended). Additional hand-holds 
and a step should be provided.” 

 
2.4 It is RECOMMENDED, the committee adopt the revised wheelchair 

accessible vehicle specification to include the amendment detailed at 
paragraph 2.3 above and that the revised specification take immediate 
effect. 

 

Page 21



 
3.  THE NEXT STEPS 
 
3.1 The committee is requested to note that the following outstanding 

tasks, delegated by the committee to the Principal Licensing & Land 
Charges Officer on 13 June 2017 will now be undertaken. 

 
 

 Identify vehicles which meet the requirements to be included on the 
designated list 

 Publish the list of designated wheelchair accessible vehicles.  

 Publish the revised policy with respect to the specification for 
wheelchair accessible vehicles. 

 Alert drivers to the duties when driving a vehicle on the list and of 
the procedure for applying for an exemption. 

 Advise owners of vehicles that their vehicle has been included on 
the published list and that they have a right to appeal this decision. 

 Issue a press release to inform the public of the Equality Act 2010 
provisions and to raise awareness that a list of vehicles has been 
published and is available on the council website. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
Publishing a list of wheelchair accessible vehicles and revising the vehicle 
specification will promote the authority’s statutory equality duty.  It is therefore 
recommended that the committee adopts the revised wheelchair accessible 
vehicle specification. 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The cost for stationery and postage for advising drivers, proprietors and 
operators of the changes is estimated at a maximum of £100. This will be met 
from existing budgets. Correspondence will, as far as practicable, be carried 
out electronically to keep costs to a minimum. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Failure to implement and revise polices in respect of equalities may give rise 
to a challenge that the authority is failing to fully exercise its equality duties. 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Human Rights – The Licensing Authority must ensure that its decisions can 
withstand scrutiny by reference to the principle of proportionality, in other 
words the end must justify the means. 

Page 22



 
Equality and Diversity –  An Equality Assessment has been undertaken and 
was considered by the Equality Board on 6 June 2017.   
 
Risk - There is a risk of civil action against the council if it is found not to have 
exercised due diligence in the setting of its hackney carriage and private hire 
policy. 
 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
CMT 
See section 2 with respect to the public consultation. 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Report to Regulatory & Appeals Committee 
– Equality Act 2010 – Wheelchair 
Accessible Hackney Carriages and Private 
Hire Vehicles. 13 June 2017. 
 

APPENDIX B Draft revised Wheel Chair Accessible 
Vehicle Specification 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Access for Wheelchair Users to 
Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles 
– Statutory Guidance. 

Licensing Office 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
 A report on this item was considered by Regulatory & Appeals Committee on 
13 June 2017.  
 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: REGULATORY & APPEALS COMMITTEE 

DATE: 13 JUNE 2017 

SUBJECT: EQUALITY ACT 2010 – WHEELCHAIR 
ACCESSIBLE HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND 
PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR FINANCE 

REPORT AUTHOR: PRINCIPAL LICENSING & LAND CHARGES 
OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Provisions of the Equality Act 2010, in respect of wheelchair accessible 
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles, commenced on 6 April 2017.  
The provisions allow a licensing authority to create a list of “designated 
vehicles” which are capable of carrying passengers in wheelchairs (section 
167) and then require drivers of those vehicles to provide mobility assistance 
(section 165). 
 
It is an offence for a licensed driver of a designated vehicle, unless they have 
been granted a medical exemption, to fail to comply with the duty to provide 
mobility assistance. 
 
By creating a list of designated vehicles the council will be able to publish and 
make clear to the public, vehicle operators and drivers, the licensed vehicles 
capable of carrying a passenger in a wheelchair and the assistance the 
drivers of those vehicles will be required to provide. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. That under the Equality Act 2010 the committee approves the 
introduction of a list of designated wheelchair accessible vehicles 
licensed by the council.   

 
2. The committee considers the draft amendments to the specification for 

wheelchair accessible vehicles and makes any appropriate 
amendments to the draft prior to it being issued to the licensed trade 
and other interested parties for consultation. 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

Page 25



 
3. That the procedure outlined at paragraph 3.5 of this report for applying 

for a driver exemption is adopted and the council’s policy is amended 
to reflect this. 
 

4. The committee agree the next steps outlined at paragraph 4.1 of this 
report and delegate the task of undertaking these steps to the Principal 
Licensing & Land Charges Officer. 
 
 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
By making a decision to implement the provisions of the Equality Act, the 
Licensing Authority will be able to demonstrate to both passengers and the 
trade a clear policy and working practise in relation to sections 165, 166 and 
167 of the Equality Act 2010. 
 
It is the Government’s view that the provisions are intended to assist 
passengers in wheelchairs in their use of designated taxi’s and private hire 
vehicles. 
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

1. To resolve not to introduce a list of designated taxis and Private Hire 
Vehicles. 

 
 

 

 
REPORT 
 
1. BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 The Government commenced sections 165 and 167 of the Equality Act 

on 6 April 2017.  Section 167 of the Act provides local authorities with 
the power to make lists of wheelchair accessible vehicles (“designated 
vehicles”) and section 165 then requires the drives of those vehicles to 
carry passengers in wheelchairs, provide assistance to those 
passengers and prohibits drivers from charging extra for this service.  
The requirements of s.165 do not apply to drivers who have a valid 
exemption certificate and are displaying a valid exemption notice in the 
prescribed manner.  An exemption certificate can be issued under 
s.166 of the Act, which is already in force.  Section 166 allows local 
authorities to exempt drivers from the duties under s.165 where it is 
appropriate to do so, on medical grounds or because the driver’s 
physical condition makes it impossible or unreasonably difficult for 
them to comply with those duties. 

Page 26



 
A copy of sections 165, 166 and 167 of the Equality Act is attached at 
Appendix A. 

 
1.2 Section 167 states that a local authority “may maintain a list of 

vehicles”.  This is seen as a power rather than a duty therefore the 
council is under no legal obligation to maintain a list. 

 
1.3 Section 172 of the Equality Act 2010 enables vehicle owners to appeal 

against the decision of a local authority to include their vehicle(s) on 
the designated list.  The appeal must be made to the Magistrate’s 
Court, within 28 days of the vehicle in question being included on the 
published list. 

 
1.4 There are currently 239 vehicles licensed by the council and 47 

(approx. 20%) of these are wheelchair accessible.  
 
 
2. VEHICLE SPECIFICATION 
 
2.1 The Act states that a vehicle can be included on a local authority’s list 

of designated vehicles if it conforms to such accessibility requirements 
as the licensing authority thinks fit.  However, it goes on to explain that 
vehicles placed on the designated list should be able to carry a 
passenger in their wheelchair should they prefer.  This means that to 
be placed on the list a vehicle must be capable of carrying some, but 
not necessarily all, types of occupied wheelchairs.  The Government 
recommends that a vehicle should only be included in the authority’s 
list if it would be possible for the user of a “reference wheelchair” to 
enter, leave and travel in the passenger compartment in safety and 
reasonable comfort whilst seated in their wheelchair. 

 
2.2 Boston Borough Council currently has a policy specifying the 

requirements and dimensions for wheelchair accessible vehicles.  
However, the current vehicle specification falls short of that required for 
carrying a “reference wheelchair”.  Therefore all vehicles will need to 
be inspected to determine which ones meet the standard to be 
included on the list.  

 
2.3 It would be appropriate to revise the current policy specifying the 

requirements and dimensions for wheelchair accessible vehicles, and 
consult on those revisions, to ensure that any vehicles licensed in the 
future are capable of carrying a reference wheelchair and thus meet 
the recommended requirement to be placed on the list of designated 
vehicles.  A copy of the council’s current policy for wheelchair 
accessible vehicles is attached at Appendix B. A draft revised policy is 
attached at Appendix C.  The committee is asked to consider the draft, 
make any appropriate amendments, and resolve the draft revised 
specification be issued to the licensed trade and other interested 
parties for consultation. 

Page 27



  
3. DRIVERS 
 
3.1 Section 165 sets out the duties placed on drivers of designated 

wheelchair accessible taxis and PHVs.  These duties are: 
 

 To carry the passenger while in the wheelchair; 

 Not to make any additional charge for doing so; 

 If the passenger chooses to sit in a passenger seat to carry the 
wheelchair 

 To take such steps as are necessary to ensure that the passenger 
is carried in safety and reasonable comfort; and 

 To give the passenger such mobility assistance as is reasonably 
necessary 
 

 “Mobility assistance” is defined in the Act as assistance: 
 

 To enable the passenger to get into or out of the vehicle; 

 If the passenger wishes to remain in the wheelchair, to enable to 
passenger to get into and out of the vehicle while in the wheelchair; 

 To load the passenger’s luggage into or out of the vehicle; 

 If the passenger does not wish to remain in the wheelchair, to load 
the wheelchair into or out of the vehicle. 

 
3.2 It is an offence for a licensed driver, driving a vehicle on the designated 

list, unless exempt, to fail to comply with the duties outlined at 
paragraph 3.1 above. 

 
3.3 The driver’s obligations to comply with section 165 apply regardless of 

where the journey starts or ends.  If a driver fails to comply with their 
duties, it would be appropriate for the licensing authority to review 
whether or not the driver remains a fit and proper person to hold a 
licence. 

 
3.4 Where a driver has a medical or physical condition, which makes it 

impossible or unreasonably difficult for them to provide the sort of 
physical assistance which these duties require, the local authority may 
grant exemptions from the duties to individual drivers under the 
provisions of section 166 of the Act.  Drivers who are granted 
exemptions will be issued with an exemption certificate and a notice to 
display in the vehicle.  The purpose of the notice is to clearly 
communicate to passengers in wheelchairs that the driver has been 
exempted from the duties to provide assistance. 

 
 
3.5 The authority will require a policy on the evidence required to 

determine whether or not a driver exemption should be issued.  
Medical exemptions for drivers from requirement to carry assistance 
dogs is currently determined upon receipt of a report from the drivers 
GP or a person who has access to the drivers medical records.  Any 

Page 28



fee charged by the medical practitioner for undertaking the assessment 
or completing a report is at the driver’s expense. The council reserves 
the right to seek clarification of an individual’s case from a medical 
practitioner appointed by the council. Exemptions are approved by 
officers under delegated powers and where there are concerns that an 
exemption needs further consideration this is referred to a sub-
committee of the Regulatory & Appeals Committee for consideration. 

 
It is recommended that this process be extended to include 
consideration of exemptions from the duties placed on drivers of 
vehicles on the list of designated wheelchair accessible vehicles.   

 
4. THE NEXT STEPS 
 
4.1 If the committee are minded not to maintain a list of designated 

vehicles, no further action is required. If however the committee 
resolve, as recommended, that the authority should maintain such a 
list, the following next steps are recommended: 

 

 Identify vehicles which meet the requirements to be included on the 
designated list 

 Notify proprietors of indentified vehicles advising them that the 
authority proposes to include their vehicle on the authority’s list of 
designated vehicles.   

 Consult vehicle proprietors and other relevant parties on the 
amendments to the specification for wheelchair accessible vehicles 

 Report responses to the vehicle owner and driver consultations to 
Regulatory & Appeals Committee at the meeting on 26 September 
2017 with a recommendation the policy, with any appropriate 
amendments, be adopted. 

 Following the Regulatory & Appeals Committee meeting on 26 
September 2017 publish the list of designated wheelchair 
accessible vehicles.  

 Publish the revised policy with respect to the specification for 
wheelchair accessible vehicles. 

 Alert drivers to the duties when driving a vehicle on the list and of 
the procedure for applying for an exemption. 

 Advise owners of vehicles that their vehicle has been included on 
the published list and that they have a right to appeal this decision. 

 Issue a press release to inform the public of the Equality Act 2010 
provisions and to raise awareness that a list of vehicles has been 
published and is available on the council website. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
A decision not to implement the powers available to the Local Authority to 
publish a list of designated vehicles would not promote the authorities 
statutory equality duties.  It is therefore strongly recommended that the 
council fully implements the powers provided by sections 165 and 167 of the 
Equality Act 2010. 

Page 29



 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications with respect to this report.  The cost for 
stationery and postage for full consultation, estimated at a maximum of £100, 
will be met from existing budgets. Consultation will, as far as practicable, be 
carried out electronically to keep costs to a minimum. 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The provisions are an option rather than a legal duty.  However, failure to 
implement the Equality Act may give rise to a challenge that the authority is 
failing to fully exercise its equality duties. 
 
The requirements, if implemented, carry a criminal penalty if a licensed driver 
fails to comply with the requirements to carry and assist passengers who use 
a wheelchair. 
 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Human Rights – The Licensing Authority must ensure that its decisions can 
withstand scrutiny by reference to the principle of proportionality, in other 
words the end must justify the means. 
 
Equality and Diversity – Failure to implement the sections of the Equality Act 
2010 with respect to wheelchair accessible taxis and private hire vehicles may 
cause a negative impact on persons with disabilities who wish to travel in a 
taxi or private hire vehicle.  An Equality Assessment has been undertaken and 
considered by the Equality Board on 6 June 2017.  Any recommendations 
made by the board will be verbally reported to the committee at the meeting. 
 
Risk - There is a risk of civil action against the council if it is found not to have 
exercised due diligence in the setting of its hackney carriage and private hire 
policy. 
 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
CMT 
Equality Board 
 
Further consultation will be undertaken as outlined in paragraph 4.1 of the 
report. 
 

Page 30



 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Equality Act 2010 ss.165, 166 & 167 

APPENDIX B Current Wheel Chair Accessible Vehicle 
Specification 

APPENDIX C Draft revised Wheel Chair Accessible 
Vehicle Specification 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Access for Wheelchair Users to 
Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles 
– Statutory Guidance. 

Licensing Office 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
 A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body.  
 

Page 31



 
FINANCE PROFORMA 

 
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:  Rachel Hilton  

 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     

REPORT:  REGULATORY & APPEALS COMMITTEE 

REPORT DATE: 13th June 2017 
 
OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 
Revenue 100     
      
      
      

Total Revenue 
Cost 

100     

 
Funding required: To be 

covered 
by existing 
budgets 

 Considered by: Date:13.0
6.2017 

Total capital cost 
 

£  Enter committee here 

REGULATORY & 
APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 

 

Revenue cost 
 

£100  Enter Council or 
Cabinet here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 
 
Cost of printing, stationery and postage to be covered by existing budgets.  
 
Risk 
 
 
Procurement 
 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 
 
This FP is valid for 3 months 
from FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 
advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report 
it may invalidate this document, it must 
be reviewed by Finance. 

   
 

Page 32



Proposed Policy     Appendix B 
 

WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE VEHICLES 
 

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licences will not be issued to vehicles being presented to be licensed 
to carry 5 or more passengers unless such vehicles are immediately wheelchair accessible (i.e. 
the vehicle must be capable of accommodating a disabled passenger whilst seated in his/her 
wheelchair).  The requirement to remove seats in order to accommodate a wheelchair will not be 
accepted; seats which fold to allow a wheelchair to be accommodated will be accepted. 
 

This Authority's minimum requirements with regard to a wheelchair accessible vehicle are:- 
 
(a) That it can accommodate a disabled passenger whilst seated in his/her wheelchair (there must 

be adequate headroom for the passenger).  For this purpose a “wheelchair” is a reference 
wheelchair as defined in The Public Service Vehicles Accessibility Regulations 2000. 

 
 The dimensions for a reference wheelchair are defined as having 
 

 total length of 1200mm, including extra-long footplates 

 total width of 700mm 

 sitting height (from ground to top of head) of 1350mm 

 height of footrest above floor of 150mm 
 

(b) That the rear/side door used for wheelchair access must be capable of opening as wide as the 
aperture. A single rear door must be open to a minimum of 90 degrees and for twin rear doors 
both must open to a minimum of 90 degrees. 

 
(c) The doorway should provide a minimum of 1220mm in its central third measured from the 

upper centre of the aperture to a point directly below on either the upper face of the fully raised 
lift platform or the upper face of the ramp fully deployed on ground level .  The door aperture 
must be wide enough to accommodate a reference wheelchair and have a minimum width of 
740mm of unobstructed space. 

 
(d)  There should be sufficient space within the vehicle to accommodate a reference wheelchair. 

The floor area required for the wheelchair should be at least 750mm x 1250mm with minimum 
headroom over the area of 1350mm.  There must be sufficient space, where applicable, to turn 
the wheelchair. 

 
(e)  All wheelchair tracking must be fit for purpose and structurally sound. 
 
(f)  A system for securing the occupant in the wheel chair and a system for effective anchoring of 

wheelchairs shall be provided within the vehicle in all spaces designated as wheelchair space.  
Wheelchair anchorage systems and devices must conform to European Directive 76/115 EEC 
(as amended). Additional hand-holds and a step should be provided 

 
(g)  Either a purpose designed wheelchair access ramp or a purpose designed wheelchair lift must 

be provided. 
 
(h)  Any purpose designed wheelchair access ramp that is carried must be lightweight and easy to 

deploy.  The ramp shall have visible reference to a safe working load of at least 250kgs.  

Page 33



Ramps must be capable of being securely fitted when in use and securely installed in the 
designated storage area at all other times. Ramps must be free from damage, deformity and 
sharp edges etc.  Ramps must be provided with an anti-slip covering 

 
(i) Any purpose designed wheelchair lift shall conform to the Lifting Operations and Lifting 

Equipment Regulations 1998 (LOLER).  A report, confirming that the lifting equipment is safe to 
use shall be presented at the time the annual and 6 monthly vehicle inspection certificate is 
provided to the council.  Vehicles will require a certificate that is valid for a period of 6 months 
from the date of issue. The lift must be capable of being secured in a suitable and satisfactory 
position when the vehicle is in motion. 

 
(j) Vehicles shall comply in all respects, and at all times, with current road traffic legislation. 
 
(k) Vehicles shall comply with the European Community M1 type approval for passenger carrying 

vehicles.  The definition of category M1 type approval is any motor vehicle with at least 4 
wheels designed and constructed for the carriage of passengers. 

 
(l) Vehicles that have been originally classified as complying with M1 type approval but have 

undergone modifications or conversions since original manufacture will be considered suitable 
provided they are presented with the relevant National Small Series Type Approval (NSSTA) or 
Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA)) certificate or equivalent issued by the Driver and Vehicle 
Standards Agency (DVSA). 

 
(m) Any wheelchair accessible vehicle originally given European Community N type approval will 

be considered unfit for the purpose and will not be considered suitable to be licensed.  The 
definition of a category N type approval is any motor vehicles with at least four wheels 
designed and constructed for the carriage of goods. 

 
Grandfather rights will apply to wheelchair accessible vehicles already licensed by the date on which 
this policy comes into effect.  They will be allowed to continue until the end of their useful life, subject to 
their compliance with all relevant test and inspection requirements. 
 

Page 34



1 

 

 
FINANCE PROFORMA 

 
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:  Rachel Hilton  

 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:  EQUALITY ACT 2010 – WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE 

HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 
 
REPORT DATE: 26TH SEPTEMBER 2017  
 
OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 
Revenue      
      
      
 100     

Total Revenue 
Cost 

100     

 
Funding required: To be 

covered 
from 
existing 
budgets. 
 

 Considered by: 
Regulatory and 
Appeals committee 

Date: 
26.09.17 

Total capital cost 
 

£0  Enter committee here  
 

Regulator
y and 
Appeals 
committee 

Revenue cost 
 

£  Enter Council or 
Cabinet here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 
 
There will be no financial implications and the minimal costs will be met from existing 
budgets.  
 
Risk 
 
 
 
Procurement 
 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 
 

Page 35



2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
This FP is valid for 3 months 
from FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 
advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report 
it may invalidate this document, it must 
be reviewed by Finance. 

   

 
 

Page 36


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	1 SAFEGUARDING TRAINING
	Appendix A - Letter to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Drivers – June 2017
	Appendix B - Letter to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Drivers – 23 August 2017
	Appendix C- Letter to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Drivers – 7 September 2017
	Finance Proforma - Safeguarding Training

	2 EQUALITY ACT 2010 - WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES
	Appendix A - Report to Regulatory & Appeals Committee - June 2017
	Appendix B - Draft revised Wheel Chair Accessible Vehicle Specification
	Finance Proforma - Draft revised Wheel Chair Accessible Vehicle Specification


